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Chairman Holmberg called to order the hearing on SB 2009.  Had to leave to testify 
elsewhere and turned the meeting over to Vice-Chairman Wanzek.  
 
Doug Goehring, Commissioner, North Dakota Department of Agriculture 
Testimony Attached # 1. 
 
(11:52) Senator Mathern: In light of the federal changes in hemp, do you see a dramatic 
change in our farming practices in light of that product or not? 
 
Mr. Goehring:  I met with secretary last week on this topic. Previously, there’s been about 
400,000 acres grown globally.  Canada produced half of those, and the United States is a 
huge consumer of hemp, mostly hemp material. The market has been expanding to look at 
things like flour, mill, hemp hearts, but very little on the fiber side. Our biggest challenge going 
forward is going to be to create the demand, because it’s easy to create the supply. There’s 
some things that the Secretary has considered going forward about. Maybe continuing like 
we did in the pilot program of somewhat monitoring acres.  He’s working on some things and 
will be sharing with the states in the near future, because sates are responsible for 
implementing and over seeing this under the authority of the USDA.   For producers, in the 
pilot programs, we’ve been collecting data on farming practices and methods; we’ve had 
some drier, drought-like conditions the past few years. It’s been challenging to find a place 
where it works everywhere. If it rains, it seems to work. Our prices went from $1.00per pound 
to $0.40 per pound. It’s started to weed out how much production we’re going to have. In 
some states, my colleagues have shared that they are growers aren’t contracting or aware 
of what the price is, but they go out and plant it in the spring, and market it at a loss.  Seed 
is expense, and that’s a challenge. 
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Senator Mathern: That $1.00 to $0.40 per pound, is that seed or fiber or hearts?  
 
Mr. Goehring:  That’s per pound for the seed. Most of what’s taking place now is seed 
production and then it can be made into food, flour, roasted hemp nuts, de-hull it for hemp 
hearts. The majority has been more for human consumption, some for the cosmetic industry.   
 
Senator Robinson: Is hemp grown throughout the state?  Or are there locations where it is 
predominantly grown? 
 
Mr. Goehring:  To date, 37 out of 53 counties in the state have tried to grow hemp. Had 
major challenges in central and western North Dakota to growing it due to drought years. 
Some of those producers haven’t wanted to do it again. There’s a few others that have done 
it fairly well. Most of our production is predominantly in the east right now.  
 
Senator Wanzek: Is it the egg and chicken thing? A matter of production or marketing?  
 
Mr. Goehring:  That’s part of what we’ve been trying to do the past few years.  We want to 
encourage processing, but then create a huge marketing program too.  We’re relying on the 
industry to step up too. The last thing we want is misinformation, misdirection, and 
mislabeling.  People get very excited or feel desperate and they start making claims that 
aren’t necessarily true.   
 
Senator Wanzek: Any livestock feed value? 
 
Mr. Goehring:  Not allowed at this point to actually feed hemp to livestock. Primarily because 
FDA needs to do the studies to make sure there would be no residual effects left in the meat 
or products.  People can eat it, but you can’t feed it to livestock.  
 
(18:03) continuing on page 8 of attachment #1. 
 
(20:01) Senator G. Lee: Under Feed, register all pet foods sold in the state. Does that mean 
anything sold at a retail outlet has some registration from the state or is that product 
manufactured here and sold in the state?   
 
Mr. Goehring:  All pet food, whether its manufactured or sold in the state, has to have a label 
on it and we have to ensure that label is correct in what it states for nutritional value, but also 
for the products in it. They can’t make false claims.  
 
Senator Dever: I’m curious, we heard about the number of dairy farms in the state.  Can you 
comment on that and where it is from recently? 
Is it true that the first two digits in the code on the milk bottle designate the state it comes 
from? 
 
Mr. Goehring:  Yes, 38 is one of the codes that’s stamped on milk, I would encourage 
everybody who buys milk to look at the code.  
 
Senator Dever: The last gallon we bought came from Ohio. 
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Mr. Goehring:  The number of dairy farms is 68. We continue to drop, between what was 
previously taking place in Canada with their new class 6, class 7 milk system, it prevented 
any products from being moved over the border into Canada and be marketed. There’s more 
to it than that, it’s the price of milk and cost of operating. It has been devastating to our 
producers.   Under the pasteurized milk order, we’ve been challenged with some individuals 
who have tried to prevent automated milk systems from being compliant.  It’s thought to help 
small farmers, but it’s the small farmers implementing because of labor issues.  
 
Senator Robinson: You referenced pet food.  Do we have a lab to test that?  
 
Mr. Goehring:  We do ask them to verify the products that go in there, we don’t actually test 
them unless there’s a concern or a question. Then we will have it sent to be tested. We work 
with the North Dakota Health Department or the Department of Environmental Quality, which 
would have the analyzers to do it, or we would find anyone of the contractors that we work 
with for lab services. We generally working with them at face value.  If they say they have 
meat in there, they better have meat in it.  
 
Senator Wanzek: I was watching “This Week in Ag Week” They talked to some South 
Dakota producers, they had their pork conference. They talked about South Dakota’s pork 
and dairy industry, and it’s growing.  We need to study South Dakota and find out what it 
takes in the long run to enhance our animal agriculture.  
 
Mr. Goehring:  I’d maybe expand a little bit. We have done some studies; we do look at it. 
It’s a matter of economies of scale.  It’s like business – there’s a cost to exist, and a cost at 
which it starts to minimize and become more efficient.  They’ve been successful because 
size of operations has been larger than 800, or larger than 1600, it just depends on the 
economics behind it. 
 
(25:54) Continuing on page 9. 
 
(28:11) Senator Wanzek: What is a restricted feed lot? 
 
Mr. Goehring:  A restricted feed lot is where animals that would normally be allowed to be 
unloaded onto a farming operation, free to roam, or maybe they’re breeding livestock. They 
are restricted to there. They may be suspect animals, or animals coming through in a truck 
rollover. They may not have had the proper health certificates, until we get the trucks and 
people there, they may end up in a restricted feedlot until we can take care of them; because 
we can monitor it. 
 
Senator Wanzek: Your agency does things with other agencies, like international trade, you 
work with the Trade Office on a lot of those issues, or with livestock, the permitting process.  
Please expound a bit. It seems there are a number of area where you need collaboration 
with other agencies? 
 
Mr. Goehring:  We work with a lot of agencies you need a network with states and the federal 
government.  In the example of livestock, we will fly livestock out of North Dakota to 
Kazakhstan.  Between our department and Veterinary Services from USDA, they would be 
the ones to work on that they would work on that they go through the quarantine process, 
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when it comes to animal disease investigation those would be a coordinated effort.  With the 
Federal Government shutdown, we’re pretty much manning it all. This is always set up in 
conjunction with the federal government. The network that’s set up in the animal traceability 
program, you’re working with other states to track animals.  When it comes to international 
trade, we have an issue that’s been raised recently that we need to address, the destination 
has been left off the paperwork. Animals arriving, need to be identified with where they are 
going.  If we don’t know the destination, we are breaking international law.  
 
(31:45) continuing on page 10. 
 
(34:16) Senator Oehlke: It was obvious from presentation that you work with Game & Fish.  
They work with aquatic nuisance species, is there any feeling relative to the Ag. world? Any 
future problems, or problems from other states?  Can it create problems for irrigation out of 
a lake, where it’s clogged with zebra mussel?   
 
Mr. Goehring:  Indirectly yes. We have a relationship with almost every state agency.   If it 
has a direct impact on agriculture, we would sit down and have some conversations about 
some things.  With respect to aquatic invasive species, we’d support their efforts.  There 
might be labelling issues, there may be certain products used to control certain species.  If 
it’s not available, they come to us and we could work with them on a 24C or a Section 18, so 
that product could be labeled for use to help control, prevent, eradicate the species.   We 
have an FDA issue that’s coming up that we’re going to be asked to implement, do outreach, 
that is on the Food Safety Modernization Act.  We will need to play a larger role in the 
implementation, oversight and enforcement of that.  They included a provision on irrigation 
water usage, which has to be monitored and regulated.  We will have to figure out how to 
address that, do we go to the source or the application. Whether flood irrigation or sprinklers.  
If invasive species comes into play, we’d have to have a discussion.  
 
(38:28) continuing on page 11. 
 
Wants the committee to consider moving the Agricultural Products Utilization Commission 
(APUC) and ND Trade Office to the Department of Agriculture. 
 
(40:08) Senator Bekkedahl: In your 4% increase for 2019 and 2020.  Does that follow the 
governor’s recommendation for 2% new money?   
 
Mr. Goehring:  It would be new money.   
 
Senator G. Lee: The APUC – where is it housed now? 
 
Mr. Goehring:  That’s over in Commerce. Both the Trade office and APUC have line item in 
Commerce Department.  In reviewing Commerce budget, there was a recommendation to 
take it from $3.1 million down to $682,000 on APUC and from the Trade Office from $2 million 
down to $1.4 million.  We have two standing programs that benefit agriculture in this state 
well. When you see a Commerce budget increase of $112 million, and they can’t even fund 
this back to where it’s a viable program, I would ask you to consider moving it over with the 
funding.    
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I had discussion with Eric Hardmeyer at Bank of North Dakota and they would be willing to 
put in $2 million into APUC out of their capital assets to promote economic development in 
the state. To offset some of that $3.1 million. 
 
Senator Wanzek: I don’t believe this is in the governor’s budget? 
 
Mr. Goehring:  No, I don’t believe it’s in the governor’s budget. 
 
Senator Mathern: Your department has been very supportive of grocery stores and co-ops 
get going. Do you have some grant money for that? How do you do that?  It’s integral to 
APUC.  Under what program do you do those things? 
 
Mr. Goehring:  Because of the different programs we can tap into; Farm to School or Local 
Foods Initiative. There are different grant dollars that we tap into at eh USDA level that we 
are given the authority to utilize.  Community Orchard Grants is another one. There’s different 
ways to use that money, sometimes research, sometimes marketing, sometimes helping a 
local food hub get established.  Those are types of things that we’ve done. 
 
Senator Mathern: So this would fit within that?   
 
Mr. Goehring:  Yes, help it to work together. 
 
Senator Robinson: Have you discussed this move with Commerce? 
 
Mr. Goehring:  No. I have not.  I decided that someone higher than that made up their mind 
about funding.  
 
Senator Dever: Is the function of APUC and the function of the Trade Office accomplished 
through the Department of Commerce or is it a matter of passing dollars through that agency 
to them.  
 
Mr. Goehring:  APUC used to be in the Ag Dept.  and for political reasons years ago, it got 
moved.  It’s a standing program within Commerce. Concerning the Trade Office, those would 
be pass through dollars to the Trade office itself, that’s a public, private partnership.  We’re 
looking at grant dollars and accessing more USDA money to help with agricultural trade 
promotion.  When government is up and operating again, we’ll see what money we have 
extra to help work with to do more trade missions and expand our global footprint.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: The Commerce Department has been cobbled together by this 
legislature.  A program would come along that someone in this committee liked, we’d put it 
in Commerce.  Various parts go to where it would be more natural.  A lot of what’s there is 
because of the Legislative Assembly.  
 
Senator G. Lee: In terms of the Trade Office, do you know the ratio of trade that they do? Is 
it agricultural related? 
 
Mr. Goehring:  I couldn’t tell what the balance is. I’d venture to say 40%-45% is 
manufactures and others.  I’ve been to some of the meetings and help to make trade missions 
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happen.  Then 55% are agricultural companies, food processing.  We are leveraging that 
relationship so that we can access more resources that exist within Food Export Midwest, 
because 13 other states that we do trade missions with.  
The contractors we have in other countries, for a small fee we can leverage that and utilize 
the Trade office to access more resources and have more opportunities in other countries.  
 
Senator Krebsbach: On your manufacturing end. Is there a percentage of those that are Ag 
related? 
 
Mr. Goehring:  Probably 50% are Ag related. They just aren’t producing an actual food item. 
 
Senator Krebsbach: I fully support APUC going back to the Ag agency.  With the Trade 
Office, was that driven by the Agriculture Commissioner or by trade people?   
 
Mr. Goehring:  That was started about 12 years ago, at that time Lieutenant Governor 
Dalrymple and majority leader Rick Berg who developed that and they wanted a place to 
have the pass through place and they put in Commerce.  It’s a matter of how one would 
prioritize it and not nickel and dime it.    We can suggest things, but you all make the final 
decision.  You might think of a better place for it, but it might be better served to be in Ag. 
 
Senator Dever: If moved to Department of Agriculture, would it be something other than 
pass thru, that there would be active involvement on the part of your department?    
 
Mr. Goehring:  I think it should function the same way, with the same board and the 
Lieutenant Governor be the chair.  We shouldn’t be distracted and let these programs go by 
the wayside.  I’m disheartened that you have a $112 million recommended increase to the 
program and you almost gut these two programs. Especially when we so desperately need 
them now. There’s a lot of things happening nationally and globally, and we’re starting to 
apply more and more resources and time, and our treasure towards developing markets, and 
then we discount trade and the Trade Office? Very few states have this type of entity, we 
need to utilize it, it’s been doing a great job to date.  
 
Senator Wanzek: I’m sure the sub-committee will look into it further.  I realize the magnitude 
of how important trade is to our agricultural industry, we hear it all the time, we saw that 
discussion in the last election. We depend seriously on trade for agriculture.     
 
Mr. Goehring:  A closing comment – I would not anticipate or pursue changing how these 
programs are framed, work function.  Just move them over and get back to work.  
 
Senator Wanzek: The Trade Office also helps facilitate commercial industry and the logistics 
of doing trade. We ship pinto beans from our farm into Mexico.  The Trade Office offers a lot 
of help in that area.  
 
(54:00) Brady Pelton, Governmental Affairs Director, North Dakota Petroleum Council 
The Petroleum Council represents more than 500 companies involved in all aspects of oil 
and gas. We are in support of SB 2009, specifically the allocation of $200,000 to pipeline 
restoration and reclamation oversight program. Created two sessions ago this program offers 
an invaluable resource to the state by providing an independent ombudsman to manage 
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complaints between landowners, tenants and oil companies. The Department of Ag has done 
a great job in administering this program. North Dakota’s oil and gas production are at record 
levels, the pipelines used to gather and transport oil and gas to market. The maintain and 
strengthen relationships between landowners and the oil and gas industry is of the utmost 
importance.  The support of the pipeline restoration and reclamation oversight program will 
continue to ensure protection of landowner interest while allowing the production of oil and 
gas to grow. We urge Do Pass on this bill and continued support of the pipeline restoration 
and reclamation oversight program.   
 
(56:00) Julie Ellingson, North Dakota Stockman’s Association  
Our cattle ranching members interface with the Department of Agriculture and its programs 
on many fronts. Two particular ones deserve a special mention, the Board of Animal Health. 
The Commissioner did a good job of out lining the that the Board of Animal Health is 
responsible for. The significance of the work the division does in order to keep our domestic 
herd healthy and maintaining a disease free status here in North Dakota. The board has had 
a great year dealing with dozens of disease trace backs; many of them originating outside 
our borders. We urge you to make sure they are adequately funded, they have limited 
resources and staff. Finally, Wildlife Services, also an important program for livestock 
producers as they’re responding to predator control. You’ll see components in this budget as 
well as Game and Fish, and the Water Commission. Still very important to North Dakota’s 
livestock industry.  
 
(57:30) Scott Rising, North Dakota Soybean Growers Association, Lobbyist # 88  
Testified in support.  
I was not aware of APUC and the Trade Office, that is very exciting. The Soybean Growers 
in the state export $1-1.5 billion worth of soybeans every year. This continual thrash to have 
a dependable partner in a meaningful way has been a challenge, as well as APUC for value 
added ag product development. It’s critical to our future. The sentence for me reads like this. 
We have a $10 billion pot of Ag farm gate money; $5.1 million doesn’t seem like a large 
investment, but it is critical.  
 
(59:04) Kayla Pulvermacher, North Dakota Farmers Union, Lobbyist # 201 
Testified in support.  
In particular, two pieces. the mediation and the Ombudsman bill.  In terms of mediation, this 
is definitely a time when we’re going to be needing mediation more than usual, with Ag prices 
where they are at; that is a program that has saved many a farmer and rancher. We would 
like to see that continued to be funded where it is. The ombudsman program has helped 
create a middle man between the farmer and producer.  The producers are getting their land 
taken care of the way they had been promised it would. That has been a good program for 
both oil and family farmers.   
 
(1:00:50) Gary Knutson, North Dakota Agricultural Association 
Testified in support. 
We represent the pesticide fertilizer, seed and equipment dealers related to agriculture 
production, we have 450 members across the state. We appreciate being regulated. They 
do an excellent job; give them all the money they need.  
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(1:01:45-1:03:28) Senator Robinson: Related a story involving former governor Dalrymple, 
an APUC grant for angora goats, and getting kicked out of committee.  
 
Senator Wanzek: The appropriation bills that Senator Holmberg mentioned need to be in by 
today.  I submitted one on Friday, it’s for a bio-science grant program, and we’ll see if we 
implement it into this one or make it a stand-alone bill.   
 
Senator Robinson: I was intrigued by the Commissioner’s proposal for moving APUC and 
the Trade Office to the Ag. Department. We have a lot at stake, I hope the sub-committee 
takes a close look at that. 
 
Senator Wanzek: Closed the hearing on SB 2009. 
 
Sub-committee: Senators Wanzek, Erbele and Grabinger.   
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Legislative Council: Alex Cronquist  
OMB:  Larry Martin  
 
Chairman Wanzek called the subcommittee to order on SB 2009. Senator Erbele and 
Senator Grabinger were also present. 
 
Senator Wanzek: Asked Doug to summarize the Ag Dept budget.  
 
Doug Goehring, Commissioner, North Dakota Department of Agriculture:  
We are working from the base budget from 2017-19. We asked for some minor changes.   
Wildlife services and funding for operations $49,400.   
Restoring grape & wine grants $3,900. 
Apiary grants $2,100. 
IT Master and customer database $110,000.  
Capital asset for plotter $2,000 
Total request was $125,400, assuming we’re maintaining our base from 2017-19. 
 
Senator Wanzek: $110,000, was that removed? 
 
Larry Martin: The IT project was funded in the governor’s request.  
 
Senator Wanzek: But the $15,000…? 
 
Doug Goehring: We asked for those, but they were not granted. Optional requests were not 
granted, but $110,000 was. 
 
Senator Wanzek: Was that in our handout initially? (That was confirmed.) 
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Larry Martin: We also included $2,000 for the plotter. That was included in the governor’s 
request. 
 
Senator Grabinger: The only things in the optional requests are Wildlife services, restoring 
grape & wine grants and Apiary grants? (Correct.) 
The amounts in past years were quite a bit different in past years, can you do anything with 
that little money? 
 
Doug Goehring: We could’ve asked for more, but I was just asking for previous cuts from 
2017-19. The grape & Wine and apiary were cut two years ago. There were cuts to wildlife 
services, and I am requesting to add a little bit more to that. About $34,000 more. 
 
Senator Erbele: There is money in these line items, there is just the ask to restore these 
amount of dollars back into your already budgeted dollars? This is not the total amount of 
money in that program? 
 
Doug Goehring: Yes. 
 
Senator Erbele: What is currently in the budget for grape and apiary? 
 
Doug Goehring: $76,000 currently in the grape and wine research. Under Apiary grants 
there is $72,900. Wild life services were cut $9,000 in 17-19 budget.  Part of my request was 
to get $9,000 plus the $34,000 to help with costs incurred over the years.  
 
Senator Wanzek: The governor recommended $1,417,400 and base level is $1,408,000. 
You had the base level cut in 2017-19? (Correct.) 
The addition $49,400 in the optional request, is most due to increased costs of aerial 
services? 
 
Doug Goehring: Since 2009, we haven’t had an increase to wildlife services, for operations 
or our portion for doing that service. Talked to John, there has been more activity with respect 
to black birds and surveillance on predators like coyotes. Plane costs 10 years ago were 
$120/hr. Now those cost $250/hr. We want to request a little bit of fund to help offset that. It 
might be pathetic asking for this little bit of money, but we’re asking.  
 
Senator Wanzek: There’s no new program, just that cost of inflation? (Correct.) 
As far as wildlife services, we’ve gotten help on goose depredation. We’ve gotten flares, and 
hawk replicas.  
 
Doug Goehring: There are various areas they work in, black birds, coyotes, beaver, goose, 
duck depredation.  

Senator Wanzek: Those services come out of these dollars? (Correct.) We figured out how 
to keep geese out, electric fence.    

Doug Goehring: We tried that at our place and it only worked for a little time.   

Senator Erbele: On the grants for grape research, are those being used? That goes through 
NDSU then? 
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Doug Goehring: They are competitive grants, but because they are receiving the grants 
they are doing the work. Every year they have to come back and ask for money.    

Senator Erbele: The program has full utilization of the dollars? (Correct.) 
 
Senator Grabinger: They are reporting to you, and it’s effective? 
 
Doug Goehring:  We’re going to have a new release in late 2020. With a new grape cultivar 
for wine production in ND. It’s the first one ever.  
 
Senator Wanzek: There are issues with labeling things as “wine made in ND”, with the 
percentage of ND juice that is in that wine?  
 
Doug Goehring: Federal laws requires 75% to be called a ND wine. State law says you have 
to graduate up through the system increasing the percentage of ND product in that wine to 
be eligible for the permit free days and Pride of Dakota Events. 
  
Senator Wanzek: It is important to provide research and cultivars in ND? 
 
Doug Goehring: I believe so. We have a great story to tell. I got to taste the new cultivar, 
and it is very good.  
 
Senator Wanzek: The two largest issues are we what going to do with APUC and the Trade 
Office. We weren’t privy to the hearing; I don’t know where those bills are at. My question is, 
if that happens, there are FTEs established that would indicate how many employees we’d 
have to move from one agency to the other.  
 
(16:24) Doug Goehring: The Trade Office is all pass-through money. It’s a public private 
partnership, but neither commerce or the executive budget can decide what those dollars will 
be. Within an agency, the ability to protect your programs, unfortunately they might do that 
at the expense of others. We see that because APUC has never been a commerce program, 
and the trade office has no tie to commerce, those were cut in the last session. I just want to 
give them the ability to have a hearing before the legislature. We want to maintain where 
they’ve been 2 years ago. With APUC, those are agriculture funds, from the gas tax, elevator 
profits. Then they swept the account again last session and we have to rely on the State Mill 
and Elevator profits. I talked to BND about funding them. Then I saw how drastically they 
were cut.  It would have to be the author granted by the legislature to put four million dollars 
into APUC.  Then legislature wouldn’t have to come up with the general fund money. It’s just 
authority.    
 
Senator Wanzek: The trade office is all pass-through. Where does that come from? (The 
General fund) 
And that’s the cost of operating the trade office? 
 
Doug Goehring: With funds they have from members. This is only a portion of the trade 
office budget.   
 
Senator Grabinger: This is new; it has come up quick. Usually we like to do an interim study.  
Is it a good idea or not? Do we just do it? 
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Doug Goehring: I’ve watched the games being played. I’d like to go forward and get it done.  
I get frustrated watching the politics involved. We’re struggling to help our manufacturers, 
exporters, even USDA has put another $2M in trade this year. ND is in a unique situation, 
we’re in the Northern end of the country and we’ve been hurt drastically by what is taking 
place.  
 
Senator Grabinger: I whole heartedly agree. You’re on the industrial commission, have you 
had discussions with the governor on why he hasn’t stepped up on these programs? Or are 
you privy to tell me those discussions? 
 
Doug Goehring: No, I didn’t have a discussion. After the fact I did tell him my concerns. I 
don’t answer to the governor, just the people of North Dakota. Whether it’s the Ag Department 
or the Commerce Department, we aren’t the third leg of the trade office. This is a matter of 
allowing a discussion to come before the legislature without it being insulated and hampered.   
At the last minute, Commerce was given more money and the Trade Office was cut. Now 
we’re cutting them even more.   
 
Senator Grabinger: I seen the effect both programs have had on our state.  
 
Senator Wanzek: We’re going to have to wait and see how the bills are heard. Have both 
been heard already? 
 
Doug Goehring: Yes, they have. Last week, both bills were heard. With the trade office we 
handle a lot of pass-through money. In fact, 20% of our budget is pass-through money.  We 
track, implement and overseeing how that is spent. This would be no different.  
 
Senator Wanzek: Alex Cronquist can you explain the base level funding changes on the 
sheet?  
 
Alex Cronquist: The only changes we’ve made is for the 2 and 3 salary increase and the 
health insurance increase. 
 
Senator Wanzek: Watch for further notices of when we will meet. For now we will adjourn 
the subcommittee on SB 2009. 
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commissioner; and to provide for transfers. 

                                                Attachment #1 

Minutes: We will bring the sub-committee on the Department of Agriculture budget or SB 
2009. Let the record show that the Senate members of the sub-committee are present. 
Senator Grabinger, Senator Erberle, and Senator Wanzek. 
 
Levi Kinnischtzke: Legislative Council  
Larry Martin: OMB  
 
Levi Kinnischtzke handed out the worksheet – attached # 1. 
 
Senator Wanzek: With that I know it’s a little while since we met. We discussed some of the 
optional requests last time. I don’t know where the rest committee is back, but I know some 
of those optional requests are included in the Governor’s budget specifically the one-time 
funding for the Customer data base, $110,000; and the Capital Assets for the plotter up 
$2000 are included. The other requests were not included and their amounts that are not real 
significant. I guess I don’t know about the rest of the committee, but I am ready to consider 
putting those in the budget. It’s the wildlife services, would that be additional $49,400 or is 
that part of the $9400 in the Executive budget. 
 
Doug Goehring: Maybe to clarify a little bit where we are coming from. I know you refer to 
the Executive recommendation. When we came into this session given what we know and 
maybe that is where you can clarify things. We were led to believe that we’re starting with 
our base budget of $17 that’s why you received the optional requests the way you did. 
Without trying to confuse things and bring in what the Governor did or didn’t do, that’s why 
we brought it forward this way. So concerning the $9400 I am going to have to defer is that 
$9400 was included in the recommendation?  Someone in the audience replied yes, it was 
part of our optional requests.  
 
Senator Wanzek: So the additional request is $49 or is the $49 would be minus the $9400? 
Doug Goehring: Correct. $40 would be.  
 
Senator Wanzek: It would be $40,000. Other committee members have any.  
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Senator Grabinger: So we are looking at is this optional request sheet that you provided us 
and you’re looking at the $49,400, do you want that included rather than what we have here 
$9400?  
 
Doug Goehring: Correct.  
 
Senator Grabinger: I don’t have a problem with that okay.  
Senator Wanzek: If I remember right Wildlife Services funding hasn’t really increased all that 
much over the last couple of bienniums and you know additional costs, vehicles, equipment, 
all that stuff costs more, so it seems reasonable to me. 
 
Doug Goehring: We haven’t had a change since 2009. 
 
Senator Wanzek: After seeing so many budgets, it takes a little while to get the bearings 
greased and working. Now the Governor’s budget proposed to remove two FTE’s? If I 
remember right other than these optional requests you felt that the budget was doable, it was 
workable, the Executive recommendation. 
 
Doug Goehring: I did not think that they Executive recommendations were acceptable at all. 
You brought about a great deal of relief when you said we’re starting with the base budget of 
1719, which then gave us the ability to bring forward these requests.  
 
Senator Erberle: I had the answer but just to be on record, in the Executive recommendation 
for example the Board of Animal Health there is a reduction in the Executive 
recommendation. But if we leave it at the base line we don’t take that reduction and so it 
remains where it is at. That was one area of concern that was raised to me and wanting to 
make sure that is not reduced. So that would be an example of staying with the base line.  
 
Senator Wanzek: One issue that I want to bring up to the other members and I am sorry 
Senator Grabinger I didn’t have time to visit with you about it. But it has been brought to my 
attention you know given the scope of the Ag commissioner’s job, and the fact that they have 
added duties with the Industrial Commission, giving some consideration when you look at 
the salaries in relationship to the other members of the Industrial Commission, I don’t think 
anybody is going to promote that level being commensurate with the Attorney General nor 
the Governor. But given the added duties I am willing to consider an equity step in the Ag 
Commissioner’s salary. I was thinking of recommending he is at $108,656 and I was thinking 
of $118,000.  Any thoughts on that? 
 
Senator Erbele: I think that is definitely a number we should consider. We’re looking at the 
proposal and raised the treasurer’s salary, and duties, and staff, it’s within the range of other 
state employees.  
 
Senator Grabinger: What was your recommendation $118,000? 
 
Senator Wanzek: $108,656 
     
Senator Grabinger: That’s what it is now. What is your recommendation?  
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Senator Wanzek: $118,000. 
Senator Grabinger: Why did you come up with that number?    
 
Senator Wanzek: I was thinking wasn’t the Treasurer roughly close to $10,000? I could have 
said, $118,656. I was thinking $10,000. 
 
Senator Grabinger: You could go to the $119,383 for 2019 which is commensurate with 
what the Tax Commissioner is going to get.  Well if you look at your figures here, the affective 
the first of July, 2019 tax commissioner is $119, 383. You can raise it to that same and be 
commensurate with that.  
 
Senator Erbele: We have to look not at where he is now, but if we’ve gone with the 2 and 3, 
what do we want the 2 and 3 to look like with his new salary?  
 
Senator Wanzek: I was looking at the others and somewhere as that area. If the committee 
is willing to consider that, if we’re going to put him in the same category as the Tax 
Commissioner. It’s not just about who is in their now. I mean it’s about whoever the salary of 
that position and the fact that they do have added responsibilities and duties giving now they 
are members of the Industrial Commission, or the Agriculture Commissioner is a member of 
the Industrial Commission. Let’s keep that in mind. That could be part of our final. 
 
Senator Grabinger: I agree with that. Senator Wanzek: All the senators agreed to that.  
 
Levi Kinnischtzke: If the thought is to match what the tax commissioner proposed salary 
increase would be, the $119,383 is part of the budget recommendation. If the proposal is to 
match the tax commissioner, so would the $119,383 be just for fiscal year 2020, and then 
matching the proposed salary increase for fiscal year 2021 for the tax commissioner? 
Because under the Executive budget that would have been $121, 770. So just a question of 
if that salary is for the whole biennium or if we will be changing that for the second fiscal 
year? 
 
Senator Wanzek: Should be to the governor’s recommendation rather than our 2-3 
recommendation.  We would put the Department of Agriculture commissioner’s salary in the 
same category as the tax commissioner in relationship to our 2-3 numbers right now.  
 
Senator Erbele: Moved to raise the salary of the ag commissioner – equal to the tax 
commissioner given our 2-3 increases that we are using in the Senate. 
Senator Grabinger: Second. 
 
Senator Wanzek: Yes 
Senator Erbele: Yes 
Senator Grabinger: Yes 
 
Senator Wanzek: Other members are you comfortable sticking with the base budget where 
it is at? Of course, other than the salary increase we just voted for. The other thing I wanted 
to ask about is, I know there has been a request to for the trade-off to some A-puck and I 
know we’ve unanimously have passed already the Bio-science initiative and I am not sure if 
we should address that for as far. I can’t recall if the last meeting if we talked about what kind 
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of additional resources you might need. Of course there is funding in that bill as it was passed. 
So, I guess the thing that we might want to address is do we implement that in here or are 
there any additional resources or is that something that the department can facilitate without 
another FTE or without additional resources.   
 
Doug Goehring: I would like to discuss more with staff as to what we may need. But at this 
time I’ll tell you I don’t believe we do, but we can get back to with that. concerning the other 
two issues you brought up, about APUC and the Trade Office. The only thing that would 
probably be addressed with the APUC situation if it passes the Senate and passes the House 
would be to transfer that position from Commerce with APUC including the budget request 
which I also understand. There is a bill in the House on the $4M that would be transferred 
from BND capital to go with APUC. If its’ identifying Commerce and everything passes, then 
that would just have to be changed. Concerning the trade-off is no matter where it goes, it’s 
a line item, it is virtually passed through. So there would be nothing to address there. It just 
would be additional duties that we would have in overseeing the contract.  
 
Senator Wanzek: My thought would be to address that which passes the Senate. I think 
we’re close to getting to passing this budget. Those particular bills with the APUC and the 
trade office have come out of committee. One is favorable vote, and one is unfavorable, vote. 
It would be nice I am not sure it’s going to be on the floor tomorrow, or if we are going to see 
a vote on that or not. We are going to have to address it if not this week, first part of next 
week. It kind of sounds like maybe there is some support for moving APUC. Between now 
coming out of committee is favorable and one is unfavorable.   We’re going to have to address 
it. Between now and the next meeting, I will probably go to Council and try to figure or visit 
with the commission and try to figure out how we would adjust this budget to reflect that. 
Does that sound fair to you too? I mean other than those two remaining issues, I can’t think 
of any other issues that are pressing right now. Other than the bio-science one but the money 
has been appropriated and its appropriated for the program and it is in a separate bill. Maybe 
in the end, when we have conference committee if it should survive the House, we can 
address that. I don’t think we really need to do maybe any more than that right at this point 
in time.   
 
Doug Goehring: We can visit and determine if there is anything we think that may need to 
be covered, but I truthfully don’t see anything right now. We’ll discuss it and we can get back 
to you during committee.   
 
Senator Wanzek: Does that sound okay for you two? We will adjourn this meeting and until 
further notice.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the 
agriculture commissioner; and to provide for transfers. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony attached # 1-2 

 
Legislative Council:  Levi Kinnischtzke  
OMB:  Larry Martin  
 
Senator Wanzek: called the sub-committee to order on SB 2009.  Senator Erbele and 
Senator Grabinger were also present.   
 
Senator Wanzek: There are a couple policy bills that transfer APUC and Trade Office to the 
Department of Agriculture. We’re going a little be on a leap of faith. I had Levi prepare some 
amendments in relationship to what we talked about last subcommittee meeting. And one of 
the main differences from what we talked about last meeting is I’m making an assumption 
that APUC is going to pass, because it came out of committee with a favorable vote, whereas 
the Trade Office came out with unfavorable vote. The way I’ve been approaching other 
budgets and this budget is if it’s something the senate has done, I’ve been willing to put it in 
the budget. We did that with the PSC and we’ll have to resolve that issue because you know 
with the bonding and licensing of grain buyers in public warehouses. In the end we’ll figure 
that out, but for now when this leaves the senate I want to address those changes that I 
believe the senate is going to make. Levi if you wouldn’t mind going through the spreadsheet 
that would address the amendments.   
 
Levi Kinnischtzke handed out the Base Level funding changes – attached # 1. 
 
(13:44)Senator Wanzek: Wouldn’t some of the salary increases, health insurances also be 
attributed to those two FTEs? That would be reflected up above in those numbers? 
 
Levi Kinnischtzke: That is correct, I have included the 2%, 3% increases for those two FTE 
in the salary and health insurance increases. So the total funding for APUC and the Ag 
commissioner’s budget per this amendment would be $23,876 higher than the $3.15M. so 
the total for that line item as you’ll see in section 1 of the bill would be $3,176,791. That 
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includes the transfer from Department of Commerce of the $3.15M and then adding in 
$23,000 change of the compensation package related to those two FTE.  
 
Senator Wanzek: I’ve been on a number of subcommittees working on bills and in almost 
all cases we’ve followed the recommendation of the governor. This is probably one time 
where I feel we’re not necessary following him, I’m working more off the base budget. I’m 
somewhat concerned about the executive budget in the sense that I think if we were to adopt 
it in its entirety, there would be certain programs, for instance popular programs, that would 
need to be cut. I’m not really in favor of that. The water bank program for instance, a number 
of farmers I know, it’s a program where you have some wet lands and you’re willing to square 
them off and put some upland grass or habitat around that wet land, you can sign up for the 
water bank program and it helps incentivize farmers and also provides habitat for wildlife, a 
program that I think has merit. The Ag mediation program, years ago when Mr. Johnson was 
the Ag commissioner I worked in the ag mediation program so I’m very familiar with that and 
I think it would, at this current time with the economics tight, it would be difficult to see that 
go. So we’ll try and cut this short, I just feel that there are so many important programs, plus 
a lot of what the department of Ag does is regulate, fertilizer, pesticides, bees, dairy, livestock 
auction barns, things that are being asked of them that are in our statute or in federal law 
that they are having to regulate. I’m just kind of laying the ground work here because it does 
look like maybe we’re not following the executive budget as much as I have in other budgets.   
 
Senator Grabinger: I’d like a little clarification; we weren’t privy to the discussions with the 
executive budget. Was it the thought process with the water bank program that the Heritage 
fund was going to be enough to cover? Is that what we’re getting? Or why was the decision 
made to eliminate this? 
 
Doug Goehring, Commissioner, Dept. of Agriculture: We haven’t necessarily been able 
to follow all the actions that were taken in the executive recommendation. It’s been a little 
challenging to understand, when agriculture is going through some very tough times and we 
have farmers that are committing suicide and farmers that are going out of business. Why 
we would get rid of the mediation program or the wetland bank program. The reality is that 
I’m not sure without somebody carrying out the directive, setting the water bank program. I 
don’t know how the outdoor Heritage fund could do it. Because it’s a matter of having those 
contracts in place, monitoring those contracts and making sure that the work is being carried 
out and done. So I can’t even answer.  
 
Senator Grabinger: So you weren’t given any indication of why, or the reasoning behind 
those cuts?  
 
Doug: The only thing I can tell was that we were required to submit a budget with 10% cuts 
on special funds and 10% on general funds. And I did meet with the governor to express my 
concerns with doing that because we’ve always had a needs based budget to you as a 
legislature, and I guess we didn’t pad it so when we had to start losing people and losing 
money, we had no place else to shore up the rest of our programs. And what we’re required 
statutorily to do, I can’t answer that question. now its overall cuts.  
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Larry Martin, OMB:  When we were discussing the budget at the executive level we didn’t 
talk about those programs specifically. Both those reductions were the agencies requesting 
their IBARs budget, so we just moved those on through.  
 
Senator Wanzek: I know in visiting with the department and the individuals that are here, 
and including Dr. Grondahl, she gave me a list of different establishments and individuals 
who are interested in becoming state inspected and I know I heard there are two in Belfield.  
 
Senator Wanzek: asked Dr. Andrea Grondahl to come and share with the committee why 
$81,000 is important to the meat.   
 
(23:03)Dr. Andrea Grondahl, Director of Meat Inspection Program, Livestock Industry 
Division, Department of Agriculture: ND Official State Establishments - Attached # 2. 
 
Senator Wanzek: I know there is one, they’re talking about rabbits? 
 
Dr. Grondahl: I haven’t heard of anyone that wants to start a new rabbit slaughter program 
but we do on the last one on that list, is a gentleman by the name of Fred Krueger, he’s from 
Armenia and he’s currently custom slaughtering goats, and he wants to do that under 
inspection. There’s several markets in Fargo and West Fargo that want to sell goat meat.  
 
Senator Wanzek: Unless the committee has an issue, if we’re comfortable with what was 
presented and we’ll still get the option of seeing the amendments and I talked to Senator 
Holmberg and we’re not going to act one it until Monday. But while the amendment is being 
drafted and in the pipeline. Is the committee ready to accept the recommendation`? 
 
Senator Erbele: moved to accept legislative council numbers and attach to 
amendment.  
Senator Grabinger: Seconded the motion.   
 
Senator Grabinger: What are we going to do with the water bank program?   
Senator Wanzek: It’s in there. We refunded.  
 
A Roll Call Vote was taken:   Yes:__3___   No:__0___   Absent:__0___.  
   
 
Hearing adjourned.  
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Minutes:                                                 Amendment 19.0222.01001 

 
Legislative Council: Levi Kinnischtzke  
OMB: Becky Deichert  
 
Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on SB 2009. 
 
Senator Wanzek: Handed out and explained amendment # 19.0222.01001 – Attached # 1.  
 
Senator Wanzek: Moved amendment 19.0222.01001. 
Senator Grabinger: Seconded.  
Voice vote carried.  
 
Senator Hogue: In moving APUC from Commerce to Ag.  In section 10, you continue on 
with having the governor appoint five and the ag commissioner appoint one.  Did the 
committee consider that if you continue to take it out of the governor’s cabinet, why would 
you give the governor’s office the ability to control this organization by appointing a majority 
of members?   
 
Senator Wanzek: We did not discuss this.  That same language is in another bill and we 
were more interested in making sure the financial numbers and FTE numbers were accurate.  
Maybe that’s a discussion that will come up on the floor.   
 
Senator Hogue: It’s fundamental fairness.  If you switch the overall responsibility and require 
a different office to discharge the responsibilities for the policy of APUC fund, you ought to 
give the executive officer to select the people on that board because that’s the right thing to 
do.  
 
Senator Wanzek: I agree with you and if this stays in the budget, and the legislature supports 
it, we should look into it and make sure there is that fairness.    
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Senator Wanzek: The repeal is taking the language out of code that references APUC being 
in the Department of Commerce and the new language is putting it into the Agriculture 
chapter.  
 
Senator Mathern: A simple fix would be to change the word ‘governor’ to ‘ag commissioner’ 
and ‘ag commissioner’ to ‘governor’ on page 2, section 10.   
 
Senator Wanzek: I appreciate that and it would be something to consider, but we’ve got a 
lot of opportunities to get that corrected and I feel that at this point in time, it’s more about 
the dollars than it is about the policy.  
 
Senator Wanzek: Moved Do Pass on SB 2009 as Amended. 
Senator Grabinger: Seconded the motion.  
   
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 14 yeas,  0 nays, 0 absent.    
 
Senator Wanzek will carry the bill.  
 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on SB 2009. 
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